IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 66,262

FILED

S. D. J. WHITE

APR 2 1965

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

By

Chief Deputy Clerk

JULIUS MEYER,

Plaintiff/Petitioner

v.

AUTO CLUB INSURANCE ASSOCIATION,
a foreign corporation,

Defendant/Respondent.

PETITIONER'S INITIAL BRIEF ON THE MERITS

C. SAMUEL NEWMAN
L. D. BELTZ & ASSOCIATES
P.O. Box 16008
St. Petersburg, FL 33733
(813) 327-3222
Attorneys for Plaintiff/
Petitioner JULIUS MEYER

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The Plaintiff/Petitioner JULIUS MEYER, will be referred to as "Plaintiff". The Defendant/Respondent AUTO CLUB INSURANCE ASSOCIATION, will be referred to as "ACIA". Reference to Plaintiff's Appendix will be "A. ___".

Plaintiff has alleged in his complaint (A.1,2) and amended Complaint (A.3,4) that on or about April 9, 1983, he was involved in a vehicular accident which occurred in Pinellas County, Florida. In said complaints, he has alleged the additional pertinent facts:

1. That he sustained physical injuries as a result of said accident. (A.1,3)
2. That although at the time of said accident, he was a resident of the State of Michigan, he had since said accident become a resident of Pinellas County, Florida. (A.1,3)
3. That at the time of said accident, he was insured by ACIA, under a policy providing "personal injury protection benefits as required by Michigan law". (A.1-2, 3-4)
4. That at the time of the filing of said complaints, he did not have a copy of said policy in his possession and control but that a copy of said policy was intended to be attached to the complaint upon its receipt through discovery. (A.2,4)
5. That ACIA "has declined to pay medical benefits and lost wage benefits" to which he is entitled under said

insurance policy. (A.2,4)

ACIA moved to dismiss Plaintiff's initial complaint on several grounds, one of which was the failure of the complaint to establish a factual predicate for long-arm jurisdiction over ACIA, a foreign corporation. (A.5) While dismissing the complaint on other grounds, the trial court denied ACIA's motion as to the long-arm jurisdiction argument. (A.6)

Upon the filing of Plaintiff's Amended Complaint (A.3,4), ACIA again filed a defensive motion which, as its only grounds, repeated the argument on the long-arm jurisdiction issue. (A.7)

The trial court denied ACIA's Motion to Dismiss the Amended Complaint. (A.8) ACIA appealed the trial court's ruling to the Second District Court of Appeal, asserting that the trial court had erred in failing to dismiss the Amended Complaint due to lack of jurisdiction over ACIA. (A.9)

The Second District Court of Appeal, in an opinion filed November 9, 1984, reversed the trial court's denial of ACIA's Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Jurisdiction, and in doing so expressed "direct conflict" with the Fourth District Court of Appeal's decision in National Grange Mutual Insurance Co. v. Fondren, 433 So.2d 1276 (Fla. 4th DCA 1983), on this issue. (A.10,11)

Plaintiff now appeals this decision of the Second District Court of Appeal under Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv).

ARGUMENT

PLAINTIFF'S AMENDED COMPLAINT CONTAINS
SUFFICIENT ALLEGATIONS TO ESTABLISH
JURISDICTION OVER THE PERSON OF ACIA.

Florida's Long-Arm Statute, Sec. 48.193, Fla. Stat. (1983), sets forth a specific list of acts which will subject a nonresident defendant to the jurisdiction of the courts of this state. ACIA's actions, as set forth in Plaintiff's Amended Complaint, fall within the scope of two subsections of that statute, either of which is sufficient to subject ACIA to the jurisdiction of the courts of this state. These subsections are:

Fla. Stat. 48.193(1)(d):

"Contracts to insure any person, property, or risk located within this state at the time of contracting." (Emphasis supplied.)

Fla. Stat. 48.193(1)(g):

"Breaches a contract in this state by failing to perform acts required by the contract to be performed in this state."

In his Amended Complaint, the Plaintiff alleged, in paragraph 6(a), (A.4), that:

"He does not have a copy of said policy in his possession and control, but further alleges that he will attach a copy of the said policy to this complaint upon receipt through discovery in these proceedings."

referring to the insurance policy issued to the Plaintiff by ACIA. Thereby, incorporating by reference, said policy into the complaint. A copy of this policy, having been subsequently

received by the Plaintiff, was attached to Plaintiff's Appendix to his Brief to the Second District Court of Appeal, and is attached hereto in Plaintiff's Appendix to this Brief. (A.12-30).

On page 12 of said policy, under the heading "General Policy Conditions Applying to All Parts of this Policy", it is stated under Section 1, as follows:

"POLICY TERM, TERRITORY, USE. This policy applies only to occurrences, accidents and losses during the policy term shown on the declaration certificate. The territory includes the states and between their ports; property protection insurance applies only in the State of Michigan. The insured car must be used for the purposes stated in the application for this policy." (Emphasis supplied.)

It is clear, from the above quotation, that the "risk(s)" insured against are "occurrences, accidents and losses", and that the territory within which said risks are insured is "the states". Thus, the plain language of this contract brings it within the scope of Fla. Stat. 48.193(1)(d), inasmuch as Florida is one of "the states" referred to in the contract, and the risk of an accident occurring within this state was one of the risks insured against "at the time of contracting".

The court, in National Grange Mutual Insurance Co. v. Fondren, 433 So.2d 1276 (Fla. 4th DCA 1983), recognized that Fla. Stat. 48.193(1)(d) provides three distinct alternatives, either of which would bring the insurer within

the jurisdiction of the courts of this state. The first would involve contracting to insure a person located within this state at the time of contracting. The second would involve insuring property located within this state at the time of contracting, and the third would involve contracting to insure a risk located within this state at the time of contracting. In the National Grange case, supra, the court reasoned:

"National Grange's policy territory encompassed the entire United States. The company was aware that the risk of loss was coextensive with the policy territory and that a loss could occur anywhere in the country. The fact that the loss occurred in Florida was a foreseeable consequence of issuing the policy with the unrestricted language territory. Thus the Florida Long-Arm Statute, Sec. 48.193(1)(d), should apply to National Grange." National Grange Mutual Insurance Co. v. Fondren, supra, at 1277.

There can be no question but that ACIA, in the instant case, intended to insure the risk of accidents occurring in all of "the states" including Florida, at the time it so contracted. Had it not so intended, it could have limited the risk insured against to certain states, or simply to the State of Michigan, as it did, in the previously quoted language from the policy, in which it limited the application of the "property protection insurance" to the State of Michigan.

In addition, the contract of insurance provides,

with regard to the personal injury protection benefits involved herein, that:

"We (ACIA) agree to pay in accordance with the code the following benefits to or for an insured person (or, in case of his/her death, to or for the benefit of his/her dependent survivor(s),) who suffers accidental bodily injury arising out of the ownership, operation, maintenance or use of a motor vehicle as a motor vehicle.

"MEDICAL BENEFITS (ALLOWABLE EXPENSES). All reasonable charges incurred for reasonably necessary products, services and accommodations for an insured person's care, recovery or rehabilitation.

"WORK LOSS BENEFITS. Loss of income from work an insured person would have performed if that person had not been injured. We will pay expenses reasonably incurred in obtaining ordinary and necessary services an insured person would have performed not for income but for the benefit of that person or dependents."
(A17)

There is no stipulation, in this section or any other section of the contract, as to where said benefits are to be paid. The law in Florida is clear to the effect that:

"In a contract action based upon a failure or refusal to pay money due, where there is no stipulation as to the place of payment, the cause of action accrues where the default occurred which is necessarily the place where the creditor resides." Engineered Storage Systems, Inc. v. National Partitions and Interiors, Inc., 415 So. 2d 114 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1982). See also Kane v. American Bank of Merritt Island, 449 So.2d 974 (Fla. 5th DCA 1984); Williams v. Aeroland Oil Co., 20

So.2d 346 (Fla. 1944); Croker v. Powell, 156 So. 146 (1934); Osborne v. University Society, Inc., 378 So.2d 873 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1979); Madax International Corporation v. Delture Intercontinental Moving Services, Inc., 342 So.2d 1082 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1977); Mendez v. George Hunt, Inc., 191 So.2d 480 (Fla. 4th DCA 1966).

The Third District Court of Appeal further stated, in the Engineered Storage Systems, Inc. case, supra, at 115:

"Florida courts have jurisdiction over the parties and subject matter in a suit brought by a resident plaintiff against a nonresident defendant for failure of defendant to perform acts required by the contract to be performed in this state, provided only that the nonresident defendant has been properly served. See also Madax International Corporation v. Delture Intercontinental Moving Services, Inc., supra."

Plaintiff alleged in his Amended Complaint, in paragraph number 3, that although at the time of the accident referred to therein, he was a resident of the State of Michigan, that he had since become a resident of Pinellas County, Florida. (A.3) At the time of the filing of the complaint, he was a Florida resident. Therefore, under the above cited cases, payment of the benefits due the Plaintiff were to be paid in the State of Florida. Paragraph 7 of the Amended Complaint constitutes an allegation that ACIA has breached the contract of insurance to which the Plaintiff was a party. (A.4) These allegations, when taken together, clearly establish sufficient facts to, under the above prevailing case law, bring ACIA within the provisions of Fla. Stat. 48.193(1)(g).

CONCLUSION

From the foregoing discussion, it is clear that Plaintiff's Amended Complaint establishes a factual basis for long-arm jurisdiction over ACIA, under both Fla. Stat. 48.193(1)(d), and Fla. Stat. 48.193(1)(g). Either of such bases for long-arm jurisdiction is sufficient. Therefore, the decision of the Second District Court of Appeal, in this cause, should be reversed and the trial court's Order denying ACIA's Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Personal Jurisdiction should be reinstated.