IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 66,262

FILED  
SIO J. VANCE

APR 13 1966

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

By \_\_\_\_\_  
Chief Deputy Clerk

JULIUS MEYER,

Plaintiff/Petitioner,

-vs-

AUTO CLUB INSURANCE ASSOCIATION,  
a foreign corporation,

Defendant/Respondent.

---

RESPONDENT'S ANSWER BRIEF ON THE MERITS

WILLIAM RUTGER  
FOWLER, WHITE, GILLEN, BOGGS,  
VILLAREAL AND BANKER, P. A.  
Post Office Box 2917  
Clearwater, FL 33517  
(813) 446-8525  
Attorneys for Defendant/  
Respondent AUTO CLUB  
INSURANCE ASSOCIATION

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

ACIA will supplement Plaintiff's Statement of the Case and Facts as set forth below. Reference to Plaintiff's Appendix will be "A\_\_\_".

Plaintiff's Complaint (A.1,2) and Amended Complaint (.3,4) contained identical allegations purporting to establish long-arm jurisdiction over ACIA. These allegations are paraphrased below for the Court's convenience:

1. At all times material, ACIA was a foreign corporation authorized and licensed to do business in Michigan; (A.1,3)

2. Plaintiff was a Michigan resident at the time of the accident, but has since become a resident of Florida; (A.1,3)

3. The accident occurred while the Plaintiff was in Florida; (A.1,3)

4. At the time of the accident, Plaintiff was an insured under an ACIA policy which provided PIP benefits pursuant to Michigan law. (A.1,2,3,4)

Plaintiff's Complaint (A.1,2) and Amended Complaint (A.3,4) failed to contain any allegations establishing that ACIA had any knowledge that Plaintiff might at some time become a resident of Florida. Further, the Com-

plaint (A.1,2) and Amended Complaint (A.3,4) failed to contain any allegations establishing that ACIA conducted business in Florida or that ACIA had an office or agency in this state. In addition, the Complaint (A.1,2) and Amended Complaint (A.3,4) failed to contain any allegations establishing: (1) the state in which the Plaintiff purchased the insurance policy in question, and (2) the policy territory applicable to said policy. While the Plaintiff now incorporates the insurance policy in his Appendix (A.12-29), the policy was not a part of the trial record.

### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Plaintiff's Amended Complaint failed to contain allegations sufficient to establish jurisdiction over the person of ACIA, and the Second District Court of Appeal was correct in reversing the trial court's denial of ACIA's motion to dismiss for lack of personal jurisdiction under the Florida long-arm statute, section 48.193 Florida Statutes (1983). Subsection (1)(d) of the aforementioned statute is controlling where jurisdiction is sought over an out-of-state insurance company.

Plaintiff urges a strained interpretation of the long-arm statute that is contrary to the mandate of existing case law that such a statute should be strictly construed. Further, due to the fact that the dispute in this particular case involves first party coverage, ACIA has a justified expectation that the appropriate forum will be Michigan. This might not necessarily be the case if the dispute involved third party coverage.

ARGUMENT

SINCE PLAINTIFF'S AMENDED COMPLAINT FAILED TO CONTAIN ALLEGATIONS SUFFICIENT TO ESTABLISH JURISDICTION OVER THE PERSON OF ACIA, THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL WAS CORRECT IN REVERSING THE TRIAL COURT'S DENIAL OF ACIA'S MOTION TO DISMISS FOR LACK OF PERSONAL JURISDICTION UNDER THE FLORIDA LONG-ARM STATUTE, SECTION 48.193 FLORIDA STATUTES (1983).

As indicated in Plaintiff's Initial Brief, Florida's long-arm statute section 48.193 Florida Statutes (1983), sets forth a specific list of acts which will subject a non-resident defendant to the jurisdiction of the courts of this state. In the decision below, the Second District followed the established case law in this state by citing subsection (1)(d) of the aforementioned statute as controlling where jurisdiction is sought over an out-of-state insurance company. Right vs. New Jersey Manufacturers Insurance Company, 441 So.2d 189 (Fla. 5th D.C.A. 1983); Nettles vs. White, 439 So.2d 1048 (Fla. 2nd 1983); National Grange Mutual Insurance Company vs. Fondren, 433 So.2d 1276 (Fla. 4th D.C.A. 1983). This particular subsection is set forth below for the Court's convenience:

(d) Contracts to insure any person, property or risk located within this state at the time of contracting. (emphasis supplied)

While Plaintiff's Initial Brief makes an argument for the applicability of subsection (1)(g) to the facts of this case,

Plaintiff has failed to cite any decision of this state specifically applying that particular subsection to a case involving a contract or policy of insurance. Further, since Plaintiff was a resident of Michigan at the time of the accident and the pleadings do not indicate when he moved to Florida, and since the declarations sheet on his policy (A.28) lists a Michigan address for the Plaintiff, the place of performance could not be said to be Florida. See also Trammell vs. Coral Ridge Interiors, Inc., 457 So.2d 593 (Fla. 4th D.C.A. 1984.)

To invoke jurisdiction under the long-arm statute a plaintiff must establish that the non-resident defendant committed one of the acts listed in the statute and that that act gave rise to the cause of action sued upon. April Industries, Inc. vs. Levy, 411 So.2d 303 (Fla. 3rd D.C.A. 1982). It is the plaintiff's burden to allege in the complaint jurisdictional facts sufficient to establish personal jurisdiction over the defendant. Newton vs. Bryan, 433 So.2d 577 (Fla. 5th D.C.A. 1983); Bank of Wessington vs. Winters Government Securities Corp., 361 So.2d 760 (Fla.4th D.C.A. 1978). Further, the long-arm statute must be strictly construed. Esberger vs. First Florida Business Consultants, Inc., 338 So.2d 561 (Fla. 2nd D.C.A. 1976).



As discussed in ACIA's Statement of the Case and Facts, Plaintiff's Amended Complaint simply fails to allege any facts establishing that ACIA conducted business in the State of Florida or that ACIA had an office or agency in this state. Also, there are no pleaded facts establishing the ACIA either knew or had any reason to know that Plaintiff was planning to become a resident of Florida.

In addition, Plaintiff's Amended Complaint fails to allege any facts establishing the ACIA contracted to insure any person, property, or risk located within Florida at the time of contracting. As discussed in ACIA's Statement of the Case and Facts, the Amended Complaint simply alleges that: (1) ACIA was a foreign corporation authorized and licensed to do business in Michigan; (2) Plaintiff was a resident of Michigan at the time of the Florida accident; and (3) Plaintiff was insured under an ACIA policy providing PIP benefits pursuant to Michigan law. Since there is no allegation describing exactly when the insurance contract was entered into or where the "person, property, or risk" was located at that time, Plaintiff has failed to establish personal jurisdiction over ACIA under subsection (1)(d) of the Florida long-arm statute.

If it is to be assumed that the Plaintiff, while a Michigan resident, purchased the policy in Michigan, then

there is no basis for personal jurisdiction over ACIA under subsection (1)(d) of the long-arm statute. See Nettles (2nd D.C.A.); Kight (5th D.C.A.). But see Fondren (4th D.C.A.). To hold that personal jurisdiction exists under subsection (1)(d) would be to ignore the strict construction mandate set forth in Esberger.

At this juncture it should be noted that Fondren is factually distinguishable from the instant case because Fondren, like Kight, involves liability coverage or third party benefits. Certainly, a liability carrier's actual and anticipated contacts with a foreign jurisdiction will be greater than those of a personal injury protection benefit carrier's due to the fact that the liability carrier is contractually bound to both defend in the foreign jurisdiction and satisfy any judgment rendered therein. Thus, while the holdings in Fondren and Kight may expressly conflict "on the same question of law", the unique facts of the instant case actually present a different issue for judicial resolution. The Second District's holding herein can be reconciled with the holdings of either Fondren or Kight.

In addition, in the instant case, ACIA, a personal injury protection benefit carrier for the purpose of this particular action, had an expectation that the forum would be Michigan regardless of the place of the accident.

This is so because the Plaintiff is listed on the declaration sheet as a Michigan resident and was a Michigan resident at the time of the accident. Thus, even if the accident occurred in a foreign jurisdiction, the clear expectation would be that the Plaintiff would return to Michigan to litigate any claim for personal injury protection benefits. ACIA would not have the same expectation if the instant case involved liability coverage. In that event, ACIA would legitimately have to expect to appear in any foreign jurisdiction in which an accident occurred. The choice of the forum would be determined more by a fortuitous event (i.e., where the accident happened) than by a planned circumstance (i.e., voluntary change of residence).


CONCLUSION

From the foregoing discussion, it is clear that Plaintiff's Amended Complaint fails to establish a factual basis for long-arm jurisdiction over ACIA. Therefore, the Second District was correct in reversing the trial court's denial of ACIA's motion to dismiss for lack of personal jurisdiction under the Florida long-arm statute, section 48.193 Florida Statutes (1983).